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WESTERN FAIR
HISTORY

TN preparing a ihort hiitory of th«

Weitern Fair from the time of

iti organization the writer is lome-

what at a disadvantage, as the records

for the first few years are not to be

found, and the information rer * rded

had to be obtained from the books of

the East BSiddlesex and the London

District Horticultural and Agricul-

tural Societies We hope it will be

of interest in that it will recall old

associations, and namer of men who

have long since passed away, who

were active in whatever they thought

was for the best in building up a

greater London, and the result of

whose labors and efforts we of to-day

are enjoying.

A. M. Hunt,

Sec'y. W. F. A.

January, 1st. 1911.
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THE WESTERN FAIR

In order to have a clear under-

standing of the beginning of this

Association, it is necessary to go back

a few years before its organization,

and give a brief account of the East

Middlesex Agricultural Society, and

the London District Horticultural

and Agricultural Society, as it was

by the amalgamation of these two So-

cieties at a joint meeting of their

respective Boards held on the even-

ing of April 22nd 1868 that the West-

em Fair Association was formed.

EAST MIDDLESEX SOCIETT.

This Society had been organized

for several years previous to 1868, and

held yearly a "Fall Show". Their

Show Grounds were situated on Tal-

bot Street north of Oxford Street.

These "Fall Shows" were of great

interest to the farming community

8



THE WESTERN FAIR

and in addition to exhibits of Live

Stock etc., a "Plowing Match" was

usually held.

The "Provincial Exhibition" an

Exhibition which was held under the

direction of the Provincial Govern-

ment and passed around to the differ-

ent ^tofmces; was held in London

^^^5% the year 1865, and this, no doubt

caused those interested to think that

a yearly Exhibition on a larger scale

than had been carried on, would be

of great benefit to the City, and much

more profitable for all. With this

object in view a move was made at

the Annual Meeting held January

15th, 1867 to dispose of the Talbot

Street property, and to secure the

use of the Military Grounds situated

on Richmond Street, but the motion

was lost and a Committee consisting

of the President Mr. Magee, Mr.

9



THE WESTERN FAIR

Wheaton and Mr. John Elliott were

appointed to confer with similar

Committees from the City and County

Councils "to discuss plans for hold-

ing larger Fairs in the near future."

A resolution was passed at a meet-

ing at Balkwell's Hotel May 4th,

1867 asking the City, through Mr.

Frank Smith, who was then Mayor,

later Hon. Frank Smith for the use of

the Military Grounds for their Fall

Show. The Talbot Street grounds

f
were leased to Mr. Harvey for the

sum of $30.00 for the summer, at a

meeting held May 25th of the same

year, but as arrangements could not

be made for the Military Grounds in

time, the Show of that year was held

in the usual place. At the Annual

Meeting held Febuary 18th 1868,

mention is made by the President,

Mr. McGee in his Annual Address
lO



THE WESTERN FAIR

that the Western Fair is abont to be

organized.

The Officers for East Hiddlesex

Society for this year were the fol-

lowing :

—

Mr. Geo. McGee President

Mr. John Wheaton 1st Vice Pres.

Mr. John Pincombe 2nd Vice Pres.

Mr. Henry Anderson Secretary

Mr. Abe Kerr Treasurer

Dhrectors.

James Anderson, George Jarvis,

Charles Tuckey, J. B. Lane, Alex.

McKenzie, Thos. Friendship, and the

Mayor of London.

At a meeting held March 21st

1868 a request was presented from

the President of the London District

Horticultural and Agricultural So-

ciety to meet their Board at 2 o'clock

the same day. At this meeting it

II

r
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THE VESTERN FAIR

was carried tinanimously after con-

siderable discussion that "It is ex-

pedient to unite the funds of both

Societies for the purpose of establish-

ing an Annual Exhibition, to be held

in the City of London under the

management of the joint Boards of
I

j
Directors of both Societies.".. A

I
Committee was then appointed to

I

prepare articles of union and report

I

at a general meeting of the Boards
to be held April 22nd of the same
year.

THE LONDON DISTRICT HORTICUL-
TURALAND AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY
WM organized a* areault of a pubUc maeting

called by his Worship Mayor Prank
Smith and held on November 13th

1867. At this meeting a Committee
was appointed to canvas the citizens

for funds to start an Exhibition. It

was at a meeting held on the evening
12



THE WESTERN FAIR

of Febuary 6th 1868 that definite ac-

tion WaS taken and a full list of

officers elected as follows :

—

•Jas. Johnston, Esq President

Jas. M. Cousins, Esq Vice Pres.

Wm. McBride, Esq Secretary

John Stuart, Esq ...Treasurer

Directors.

Thos. Routledge, London Township

John Nixon, Westminster "

E. Tooley, Dorchester
'*

W. R. Vining, Nissouri

W. S. Smith, Mayor of the City, Aid.

John Campbell, Aid. Jas. Durand,

John Elliott and Mayor Arkell of

St. Thomas.

By-laws were drawn and Com-

mittees appointed for different pur-

poses. It was during this year that

the Government passed an Act al-

lowing small grants to Agricultural

Better known as Sunnyside Johnston

13



THE VESTERN FAIR

flodetiei holding shows, and this new
Society at once took advantage of
this Act and drew their grant, as weU
as East Middlesex Society, which was
uaed to good advantage, and contin-

ued for years according to the mem.
bership each year.

At the meeting of April 22nd 1868
referred to previously the amalgama-
tion of funds and efforts was accom-

plijhed, which has been continued to

the present time, as both Societies

referred to, are in existence to-day

and their present officers still form a
part of the Western Pair Association.

The officers appointed at this

joint meeting were therefore the first

Board of the Western Pair Associa-

tion and were as follows :—
14



THE WESTERN FAIR

fKr Jaj. Jjhnston President

Mr. McOee Vice President

Secretaries.

Messrs. McBride and H. Anderson

Treasurers.

Messrs. Alex. Kerr and John Stuart

THE LATE WM. McBRIDE

Firtt Sccratwry of tb* W««t«rn Fmir

15

C<i/
(Vv



The name choien was "The West-

ern Fair Association." Theie two
Societies thus uniting their forces at

this meeting held April 22nd 1868

was the commencement of this As-

sociation, and by hard work during

the following Spring and Summer
were prepared to hold the

FIRST WESTERN FAIR
on September 2»th and 30th of that

same year. There has been an Ex-
hibition each year since that time

without a brea** and as we will not
be abl6 to gi^e details in connection

with them aU it might be of interest

to give some information regarding
this this first one.

The Exhibition was held on the

MiUtary Grounds which were then
situated on Richmond Street North,
where the 0. P. R. station now standi.

6



THE WESTERN FAIR

It ii on record as being a decided

gucceii although the weather especi-

ally on the second day, was far from

favorabljB. Owing to the Crystal

Palace which was situated on Wel-

lington Street between what is now

Hyman Street and Central Ave. be-

ing occupied by the MiUtary, the old

Drill Shed which stood where the

Collegiate Institute now stands was

used for such articles as required to

be placed inside a building, while

the Live Stock was shown on the

Grounds near the Palace.

The Horse Classes are reported

as being weU filled and the following

Exhibitors are mentioned :—

A. McTavish of Lobo Township, A.

Laurie of London, Eobert Murray

and Alex. McArthur of Westmin-

ster,Wm. Saddler of Dorchester, J.W
McLurg and T. McLean, Lobo. In

17



THE WESTERN FAIR

Cattle, Messrs. Peters and Pincombe

showed a number of Devons and Mr.

Oeo. Robson of London Township

carried away first prise for the best

pair of working Oxen.

A few Sheep and Swine were

shown, and a fine display o*" Poultry

wr ^ made by Messrs Peters, Bogue
and A'^utledge. A number of Imple-

ments wore shown, the principal Ex-

hibitors being Mr. John Elliott of the

"Phoenix Foundry" London, show-

ing a specimen of the Ball's Ohio

combined Reaper and Mower. The

"Jos. Hall Works" Oshawa» Reapers,

with sell rake attachment, "The A3rr

Combined" shown by J. Watson of

Ayr, Ont, "Anderson's Combined

Pea harvester and Hay Rake," ex-

hibited by Stewart Bruce h Co., Seed

Drills and Plows by Wm. and Jas.

Walker of Westminster; Hand Qrass
18



THE WESTERN FAIR

Seeder by Oro. Murray of Weitmin-

Iter; Messn Maxwell and Whitelaw

of Parii exhibited Seed DrUli; E.

Leonard exhibited Wood Sawing

Machines. Plowi were ihown by

Oeo. Grey of London and J. McSherry

of lona. Ditching Machines by Rob-

ert Bobson; Hay Forks by Eliot

Grieve; Harrows by Jacob Metzer;

Pumps by N. Reynolds and J. M.

Cousins; Wagons by Plummer and

Pacey; w«i>aw Cutters by J. M. Cous-

ins ; Carriages by J. Campbell, Abbot

Bros. Thompson and Moran, Smith

and Gordon; McKellar and Stewart;

Pacey and Sons; and Shotwell and

Hodgins.

Furniture was shown by Mr.

Moorehead and C. Coombs, Stoves

by McClary's and many other artic-

les of general interest were on Exhib-

aton. The Exhibition was considered

19
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a success from a financial standpoint

as the receipts including all grants

was $3,670.20 and the expenditure

including $1,530.00 paid in prizes

was $2,833.46, leaving a balance to

the credit of the Association of

$837.76.

Another Provincial .Exhibition

was held in the year IS&iM which

there bk very little on record. $200.00

was appropriated for the use of the

local Committee in preparing the

grounds for the same. It was this

Exhibition that Prince Arthur Duke
of Connar:;ht visited when in London

%nd the attendance is reported as be-

ing very large.

At the Annual Meeting of East

Middlesex Society held January 20th

1870, it was on motion unanimously

decided to sell the Talbot Street

property. Arrangements had, in the
20
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THE WESTERN FAIR

meantime, been made with the City

as to the permanent use of the Mil-

itary Grounds for Exhibition pur-

poses.

A large amount of money haying

been expended on buildings by the

Government, assisted by the City, for

the Provincial Exhibition of 1869,

had left everything in good condition

for The Western Fair of 1870, prep-

aration for which was entered into

heartily by both Societies, and the

dates fixed for September 27th 28th

and 29th, being a three day Fair.

This Exhibition was a success,

and after expenses were paid, and

prize money paid to the amount of

$3,459.26 to Exhibitors, a balance of

$950.12 was left in the hands of the

Treasurer Mr. A. S. Emery. Up to

this time very little had been paid in

salaries to any ofiBicials, only a small

1 wmmmmmmfmmm pm



THE WESTERN FAIR

sum of about $20.00 a year being

paid the Secretary for his work.

The Exhibition of 1871 was a four

day Fair, being held September 26,

27, 28 and 29 with Mr. Rich. Tooley

M.P.P. as President and Mr. William

McBride Secretary.

In 1872 the Provincial Fair being

held in Hamilton and froc: other

causes it seems to have been some-

what of a hard year. $10,000 was

offered in prizes $6,624.50 of which

was paid. A very gratifjring event

which took place during this Exhib-

ition was a visit of His Excellency

The Governor General and Lady

Dufferin.

Mr. Wm. Saunders was President

this year and Mr. McBride Secretary,

Mr. A. S. Emery being Treasurer.

The Exhibition of 1873 was The

Provincial Fair again.

22



THE WESTERN FAIR

The Exhibition of 1874 seems to

have had its troubles. An agitation

was started early in the year to open

certain streets through the Grounds,

and dispose of the property for build-

ing purposes. The officers of the dif-

ferent Societies opposed this in every

possible way, and succeeded in hav-

ing a vote of the people taken, when

it was carried by an overwhelming

majority 9 leave the grounds as

they were. This uncertainty seems

to have had a bad effect on the Exhib-

ition, but after all expenses and prize

money were paid a cash balance of

over $4,000 remained to the credit

of the Association. Mr. Jas. John-

ston was still President and Mr.

McBride Secretary.

Of the 1875 Exhibition very Uttle

is left on record. $12,000 was of-

ferred in prizes of which over $7,000

23



THE WESTERN FAIR

1;: l^, .

la

was paid. New stables were erected

this year and new fencing placed

around the grounds.

The Exhibition of 1876 seems to

have been very unfortunate on ac-

count of bad weather, and while the

e^ jibits were good and a large num-

ber of them, the attendance was

small. This being the year of the

Oentem^&l Exhibition at Philadel-

phia, a large number of farmers and

others having attended there it had

the effect of reducing the attendance

during this Exhibition.

The Exhibition of 1877 was the

Provincial one.

Of the Exhibitions of 1878 and

1879 there is very little information.

They were a success financially as it

is found that at the close of 1879

Exhibition there was a balance to the

credit of the Association of $5,459.07,

24



THE WESTERN FAIR

after having paid prizes of over

$7,000.00 and construction account

of $1,491.35. The officers of the So-

ciety had been changed somewhat

during these years. Mr. A. McCor-

mick was now President, Messrs John

Nixon and Thos. Partridge, Jr. Vice

Presidents, Wm. McBride Secretary,

Wm. Belton Treasurer and J. B.

Smyth Superintendent of Grounds.

County Directors Jos. Johnston, John

Wheaton, R. Whetter, Robt. Dreaney,

John Kennedy, D. McKenzie, Geo.

Douglas, H. Anderson, G. Scatcherd,

Leon. O'Dell. City Directors John

Christie, John Plummer, W. Y. Brun-

ton, John H. Griffith, A. S. Emery,

John Williams, Geo. D. Sutherland,

C. W. Andrews.

Auditors J. S. Dewer and A. G.

Smyth.

In the year 1880 an agitation was
as



THE WESTERN FAIR

afirain started to seU the grounds,

and a By-law submitted to the people

which was voted down again. The

Exhibition was held and showed a
balance on hand of over $5,000.00.

Mr. J. B. Smyth being Treasurer.

The year of 1881 was the Prov-
incial Exhibition. It was during
this year that the Secretary Mr.

McBride was accidently drowned in

the Vidioria disaster on the river

Thames, and suitable resolutions of

sympathy were passed by the differ-

ent Boards referring to the same.
Mr. J. B. Smyth was elected to suc-

ceed him.

The Exhibition of 1882 was held on
the first week of October, which was
a very successful year. Over $11,000
was taken from the sale of tickets

$1,600 from the sale of booths and
privileges, and $1,000 jach was given

26



THE WESTERN FAIR

over from the two Societiee as granti.
Over $8,000.00 wu paid in prises;

$1,200.00 for advertising and nearly
$2,000 for construction work. The
year closed with a balance of over

$6,000 reported by the Treasurer Mr.
D. McKenzie.

The prosperity attending the 1882
Exhibition seems to have inspired the
Directors to large expenditures for
1883. $2,400 was added to the prise
list. Some attractions were secured
and an evening performance was at-

tempted. A grand stand was erected

at a cost of $1,100 and a fence placed
around the horse ring costing $300.
Over $10,000 was paid in prizes and
although the receipts were good the
surplus dropped about $2,000.00, and
the Board was blamed for adding
so much expense.

The Exhibition of 1884 is on re-
27



'^"E WESTERN FAIR

cord as being very successful as re-
gards entries and exhibits. The
weather conditions were bad and the
attendance is estimated to have faU-
en oflr by six or eight thousand, and
it was passed on for the next Board
to seriously consider a reduction in
the prize list, as the amount paid out
in prizes exceeded the gate receipts
by $376. The general opinion seems
to hav9 been that more money must
be spent in advertising the Exhib-
ition.

The Provincial Exhibition was a-
fifain held in 1886.

In 1886 the Exhibition seems to
have been considerably disturbed on
account of certain portions of the
grounds having been sold, but the
best use possible was made of the
balance. Application was made to
Hon. John Oarling for the use of the

38



THE WESTERN FAIR

stables at the old Brewery in case
they were needed which was freely
granted. The Exhibition was held
under great disadvantage from vari-
ous causes and after it was finally
settled up the surplus was found to
be only $2,867.06. Mr. Richard
Whetter was President, Mr. George
McBroom Secretary and Mr. D.
McKenzie Treasurer. This seems to
have been a critical period in the his-

tory of the Exhibition, but notwith-

standing the discouragement a num.
ber of citizens met together on the

evening of April 28th 1887 at a
Provisional Board meeting held in

their office, which had been estab-

lished in the Victoria Buildings op-
posite the City HaU, and proceeded
to organize for the Exhibition of that
year. A bill had been presented to
the Legislature in the meantime ask-

29
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ing for an Act of Incorporation for

"The Western Fair Association"

signed by James Oowan, Mayor of

the City, A. W. Porte, J. W. Little,

Richard Whetter, Lawrence Clever-

don, Donald McKenzie, Geo. Douglas,

John Walker, Thos. Oreen, W. Y.

Brunton, T. H. Marsh, John Oreen,

R. C. Stnithers, John Wolfe, W. J.

Reid, A. M. Smart, W. R. Hobbs, T.

R. Pfirker, Robert Lewis and M.

Masuret. This had been granted

and went 1 U> effect April 18th of the

same year. This Act gave member-

ship in the Society by representatives
m

being appointed from the City Coun-

cil, East Middlesex Agricultural So-

ciety, the London District Horticul-

tuitd and Agricultural Society, the

Board of Trade and various other

Societies and organizations, that

might from time to time apply for

30
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THE WESTERN FAIR

i

f

membership. The Board of Direct-

ors was to consist of not less than

fifteen or more than twenty-four

members. The Mayor of the City

and five Aldermen, six from East

Bliddlesex Agricultural Society and

twelve to be elected at each annual

meeting of the membership making

twenty-four in all.

Notices were then sent out and

the first annual meeting under the

new Act was held on April 29th 1887,

at which the following Directors were

elected. Messrs. A. W. Porte, F. B.

Leys, W. Y. Brunton, W. M. Oart-

shore, T. H. Marsh, W. R. Hobbs, A.

M Smart, R. Lewis, W. J. Reid, J. W.

Little, J. D. Sharman and Allen

Bogue. At a subsequent meeting

Mr. Porte was elected President,

Mr. McBroom Secretary and Mr. D.

McKenzie Treasurer.

31
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Thii leemg to have been a vety

itrenuoui year aa the question of

luitable groundi had to be coniid-

ered, as the Richmond St. property

'lad been broken up by the entrance

of the 0. P. B. and other causes. Ap.

plication was at once made to the

City Council for a By-law to be sub-

mitted to the people, asking for an

expenditure of a sum of money suf-

ficient to purchase new grounds

and erect suitable buildings thereon.

East Middlesex Society released their

claim on the old grounds for certain

consideration in the new ones and

Queens Park was purchased. The

old grounds were sold and active

preparations made for the Exhibi-

tion of 1887 to be held the entire

week of September 19th.

The Exhibition was in every way a

success. It was carried on in a much
3a
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larger way than any former onei.

Large and commodious buildingi had

been erected at an expense of about

160,000, a good half mile track had

been built and everjrthing put in ex-

cellent condition. The total receipts

for this year were $19,619.60 and the

surpliis after pajdng all expenses and

prizes was only $413.40. This of

course, was only the Exhibition ac-

count and does not include grounds

or buildings.

The Annual meeting for 1888 took

place on Febuary 15th of that year.

The full Board of Directors and Of-

ficers elected were as follows :

—

A. W. Porte President

Geo. Douglas 1st Vice Pres.

J. W. Little 2nd Vice Pres.

Geo. McBroom Secretary

D. McEenzie Treasurer

J. Hook, Superintendent of Grounds
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Directors.

R. Whetter, Mayor Cowan, Aid.

Oallard, Aid. Taylor, Aid. Oonnor,

Aid. Winnett, John Pope, W. R.

Hobbs, T. H. Marsh, F. B. Leys, A.

M. Smart, W. M. Gartshore, R. Vin-

ing, Allen Bogue, A. J. B. McDonald,

Robert Lewis, J. D. Sharman, W. Y.

Brunton, W. J. Reid and F. Shore.

The Board took a very active in-

terest in their work, and at once or-

ganized Committees to prepare for

the Exhibition. It was decided to

hold a nine day Fair, and the dates

were fixed for September 20th to

29th. $2,500 was appropriated for

Printing and Advertising, $4,000 for

Attractions and $2,000 for Improve-

ments on Grounds and Buildings.

This Exhibition appears to have been

a great success. The gate receipts

were 20% in advance of the previous
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year; $2,366 was taken for booths

and privileges, and the receipts were

all good. The expenses were ixlso

heavy, nearly $9,000.00 being pt id in

prizes, and the year ended with only

a small cash balance of $281.31. A

Dog Show under the control of the

London Kennel Club, was held this

year of which there is no record left.

The Exhibition of 1889 was the

"Provincial" as per arrangement

with the new Board.

On January 20th of this year, Mr.

Geo. McBroom resigned the position

of Secretary of the Association, and

Mr. Thos. A. Browne was appointed

his successor.

At the Annual Meeting held Feb-

ruary 1890 the following Directors

were elected :

—

A. W. Porte, J. W. Little, W. J.

Held, W. B. Hobbs, T. H. Marsh, A.
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M. Smart, W. M. Gartshore, R. Lewis,

J. S. Pearce, W. T. Bninton, Geo. M.
Reid and Wm. Yates. The Directors

from the City Council were Mayor
Taylor, Aldermen Jones, Garratt,

Wyatt, O'Meara and Dreaney; and

from East Middlesex Messrs. R. Vinn-

ing A. R. Rowat, D. McKenzie, Jas.

Bell, F, B. Leys and Wm. Scatcherd.

Mr. Jos. Hook was appointed Super-

intendent of Grounds, and prepara-

tions made for the Exhibition. The
dates were fixed for Septembe. 18th

to 27th, the Live Stock to be there

from 22nd to 27th. On account of

the damage done to the buildings

while idle during the year the City

Council were asked to place a care-

taker in charge of the Grounds and
Buildings for the entire year. A
Dog Show was held this year also,

but at a loss of $160.00. The Ex-
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hibition proper was a great success.

Such distinguished visitors as Lord

Aberdeen, Hon. John Dryden, Prof.

Wm. Saunders and others were pres-

ent and expressed their approval and

appreciation at the extent of the Ex-

hibition. During this yeex a 75

horse power boiler was installed for

power in the Machinery Hall. This

year ended with a cash balance of

$2,377.66.

The Directorate for the year 1891

was changed very little, Col. Leys

name was substituted for C rt-

shore who came to the Boara from

the City Council, and Wm. Walker

took Mr. Leys place from East Mid-

dlesex. During the year Mr. Marsh

resigned, and Mr. Wm. Jones was

elected in his place. The dates for the

Exhibition were Sept. 17th to 26th.

The Qrounds were improved during
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this year by laying out drives and
walks through them, and a number
of trees planted, vvhich added con-
siderably to the general appearance.
The year ended with a surplus of
over $5,000 after transfering $2,096
to Capital Account.

The dates fixed for 1892 were
- September 15th to 24th. Prom the

standpoint of entries and attendance
this Exhibition was in advance of all

others previously held, but as was al-

ways the case the expenses were also

larger. Over $10,000 was paid in

prizes and the year ended with the
surplus somewhat less than 1891.

The Exhibition of 1893 was held

September 14th to 23rd. Some new
Directors appeared this year on the

•...Board from the City Council as fol-

lows Aid. Thos. Jones, Altf. J. Wei-
ford, Aid. J. Pritchett, Aid. J. W '

38
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Jones, and from East Middlesex, Mr.

Chas. Trebilcock and Wm. Moore.

In the Live Stock Department the

entries were larger this year than any

previous Exhibition. The Machin-

ery Hall was filled. During this year

the last payment of $2,250 was made

on the property bought by the As-

sociation on the west side of the

Park, and for which they paid $8,900

not including interest. There had

also been paid on Queens Park prop-

erty up to this time, in addition to

the above, $7,658.48 for construction

work and permanent improvements,

and had spent for furniture and chat-

tels $3,134.10, so that it might well

be said thar the Western Fair Associ-

ation had come to stay. The year

1893 ended with a cash surplus of

$5,006.57.

The Exhibition of 1894 passed off
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BuccesBfuUy, the gate receipts show-
ing a slight decrease... The plan of
having a daily parade of the prize
animals inside the ring was adopted,
and proved very satisfactory. The
Directors and Officers were the same
as for 1893.

The Exhibition of 1896 was held
September 12th to 21st. On the
eveniiig of September 12th, the open-
^S day of the Exhibition, a disas-
trous fire occurred, which swept out
the fine Carriage Building, and Poul-
try Building, and while the Exhibits
were all saved, the loss of the build-
togs was felt keenly by the Board
Temporary quarters were at once
provided in tents, and other build-
ings, and the Exhibition held as if
nothing had happened. President
Porte in his address at the Annual
Meeting held Pebruaiy Idth, 1896 is

reported as saying that "although
40
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the circumstaiices of the fire was very

unfortunate, that the City Council

had already taken the matter up,

and plans had been prepared ^or new
buildings, not only to replace the

ones destroyed, but also new Horse

and Cattle bams. Sheep and Swine

pens, and a re-arrangement of the

other buildings, for which $26,000.00

had been voted by the Council.

The Exhibition of 1896 was a re-

cord breaker. The receipts were
over $4,000 more than 1895. The
now buildings had been built and
$8,324.49 paid by the Association to-

ward the same. The gates and grand
stand receipts were over $19,000.00.

The booths and privileges $2,896.00

over $10,000.00 was paid in prizes,

$2,500 in advertising and printing

and $4,000 in attractions. The year

ended with a cash balance of^ $928.70
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after paying the above amounts on
buildings and improvements.

At the Annual Meeting held on
February 17th 1897, Capt. Porte re-

signed the Presidency of the Associa-
tion on account of his removing from
the City. A suitable resolution was
passed by the Board and a present
of a handsome watch and chain was
made to Mr. Porte.

The following Board was elected
for 1897 :~

^^^- *"• B- Ws President
Mayor J. W. Little 1st Vice Pres.
Allen Bogue 2nd Vice Pres.

Directors :—In addition to the
above from the Annual Meeting
Messrs A. M. Smart, Jas. H. Brown,
J. S. Pearce, W. M. Spencer, W. r'
Hobbs, Wm. Yates, W. J. Reid, Geo
Taylor, Lt.-Col. W. M. Oartshore,
Col. R. Xewis and Capt. A W. Porte.
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Prom the City Council :—Aid. Chas.

Taylor, J. iutkins, J. W. McCallum,

R. W. Bennett and Joseph Johnston.

From E. Middlesex :—D. McKenzie.

John Kennedy, Wm. Moore, C. E.

Trebilcock and J. Laidlaw.

Thos. A. Browne Secretary

Mr. D. McKenzie Treasurer

Jos. Hooke, Superintendent Grounds
and Buildings.

The Exhibition was held from

September 9th to 17th of this year

and was a very successful one. The
entries were good, the attendance

large, and after pajring all expenses

and prizes to the amount of $9,80C 00,

there was a cash balance of $3,154.00

in the Bank, after paying out $2,017

on construction work and improve-

ments.

In 1898 two new names appear on

the list of Directors as elected at
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the Annual Meeting, Messrs E. Shaw-
Wood and E. A. Oarrothers. Lt..
Ool. W. M. Oartshore was elected
President. Mr. J. S. Pearce 1st Vice
President; and AUen Bogue 2nd Vice
President; Mr. Jas. H. Brown who
was Chairman of Grounds and Build-
ings acting as Superintendent of
^ -J.

,
During this year an Art An-

nex was built to the Main Building
at a cost of $1,682. The year closti
with a cash balanoc oi $8,496.00 and
a recommendation for the next Board
to place $5,000.00 of this amount in a
special reserve fund, to provide for
a "rainy day." Ahio a recommenda-
tion to raise the prize list as only
about $9,000 had been paid out this
year.

The Exhibition of 1899 was held
September 7th to 16th. In May of
this year, Mr. Thos. Browne having
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been appointed to the position of

Postmaster of the City, resigned the

position of Secretary and Mr. J. A.
Nelles was appointed as his successor.

A committee was appointed and a
suitable memento was secured and
presented to Mr. Browne for his long
and efficient services. During this

year large expenditures were under-

taken by the Board, some $6,222 be-

ing expended on Grounds and Build-

ings, the principal item being $2,859
for a new open stand. At a Board
meeting held S«r>tember 12th, during
the Exhibition, ^fir. Jas. H. Brown
was presented with a Oold Watch
on behalf of the Association for his

services as Chairman of the Grounds
and Buildings, and Superintendent

over the large amount of work done
during the year. The year was a
good one financiaUy. After paying

45



THE WESTERN FA I

aU expeniei the Treasurer reported
a CMh balance of $2,631.00. During
the winter of this year the Pro-
vincial Fat Stock Dairy and Dressed
Poultry Show was held upon the
grounds, and occupied the buildings,

but the records show that it was not
very well patronized by the general
public^

Very little change was made in
the Board for 1900 with the excep.
tion of the Directors sent from the
City Council who were nearly aU
new men. They were the following;

Mayor P. 0. Rumball. Aldermen. Jas.'

Malloch, Richard Wray, W. H. Win-
nett, J. W. Bartlett and H. Winder.
Lt..Col. Oartshore was again elected

President, J. A. Nelles Secretary and
D. McKenzie Treasurer. The dates
were September 6th to 15th and re-

ports show a very good year. Gates
46
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and Orand Stand receipts were over

$18,000.00 and boothi and privilegei

$4,404.00. Prizes to the amount of

$11,000.00 were paid; over $3,000.00

expended on Grounds and Buildings

and a surplus of $3,633.00 was re-

ported at the end of the year.

At the Annual Meeting for 1001,

one new Director was elected, Mr.
Geo. O. McConnick, one new one

from East Middlesex namely BIr. T.

Hardy Shore and five new ones from
the Council, viz. Aid. O.T.Campbell,

Wm. Oerry, N. Cooper, J. Oarratt

and Geo. Ohnstead. Lt.-Col. Gart-

shore was again elected President,

J. A. Nelles Secretary and D. McKen-
zie Treasurer.

The By-laws were revised this

year, and several important changes

made, one of which was that no paid

oflBcial can be on the Board of Direc-
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tors. The dates were fixed for Sep-

tember 5th to 14th. In August of

this year Mr. J. S. Pearce resigned

and Mr. Isaac Waterman was elected

in his place, and made Chairman of

the Main Building. At the same
meeting Mr. Jas. H. Brown resigned

his position as Director and Mr. W.
Gamm^ge was elected in his place,

and made Chairman of the Horti-

cultural Committee... During this

year the buildings were painted

which added very much to their ap-

pearance. The weather conditions

were bad during the Exhibition, the

gates and grand stand receipts drop-

ping to $12,813.85, over $11,000 was
paid in prizes, and $2,921 on Grounds
and Buildings. After all expenses

were met the cash balance reported

was less than $100.00.

Very little change was made in
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the election of Directors at the Ann-

ual Meeting for 1902, during the

year two of them were removed by

death, the late Secretary Mr. Thos.

Browne and Mr. John Kennedy. Mr.

Geo. M. Reid was elected to fill Mr.

Browne's term. Col. Oartshore was

again elected President, and Mr.

Nelles Secretary. This Exhibition

was a success in every particular.

The President is quoted as saying in

his Annual Address that while they

started with nothing in the Treasury

at the beginning of the year, after

meeting all obligations they were en-

abled to carry forward a balance of

$2,901.07.

The Board of 1903 was formed

with very few changes except from

the City Council, Mayor Adam Beck,

Aid. Dr. Beecher, R. Matthews, Wm.
Wyatt and R. S. Abram being new
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men. Col. Oartshore was again e-

lected President, J. A. NeUes Secre-
tary and Jas. H. Brown Superintend-

ent of Grounds and Buildings. Dur-
ing this year the general offices were
located in the rooms occupied at pres-

ent, corner of Richmond and Carling

Streets, second floor. The dates were
fixed S^ptember 11th to 19th. Dur-

the year Mr. Isaac Waterman and
Mr. Shaw-Wood having died, Messrs.

J. Pringle and J.W.Jones were elect-

ed to the Board. It was during this

year that the necessity of a new
Dairy Building forced itself upon the

Board, and the President in his Ann-
ual Address called attention to the
fact. Although Thursday, one of

the principal days of the Exhibition

was wet, a cash surplus of $4,494.00

was reported on hand. This amount
was divided by placing $4,000 in the
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Bank to the Trustee account and the

balance to Current Account.

The first business taken up by the

Board of 1904 was the new Dairy

Building:. After considerable work

on the part of the Board, and after

several deputations had waited on

the Qovemment regarding a grant,

it was decided to build; tenders were

called for accordingly, and the new

Dairy Building was erected in time

for the Exhibition, a grant of $10,000

having been secured from the Ontario

Government toward the same. The

Exhibition of this year was honored

by the presence of the Premier Hon.

O. W. Ross and Hon. John Dryden,

then Minister of Agriculture, who
officially opened the new Building

on Tuesday, September 13th. This

is reported as a good year and ended

with a cash surplus to the credit of
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both accounts in the Bank of the sum
of $6,864.73.

Several new Directors were e-

lected on the Board for 1906. The
full Board were aa follows :

Elected at the Annual Meeting :—
Lt-Col. W. M. Oartshore, Lt-Col. F.

B. Leys, Lt-Col. J. W. Little, Messrs.

A. M.< Smart, Wm. Oammage, Wm.
McNeil, Geo. M. Eeid, W. J. Reid,

Geo. G. McCormick, R. A. Carrothers,

John Pringle and J. W. Jones.

Prom the City Council .—Mayor
Campbell, Aid. J. H. Saunders, E.

Matth ws, W. Carson, Wm. Gerry
and R. S. Abrai^

From East Middlesex .—Messrs
Allen Bogue, Wm. Fleming, Wm.
Moore, C. E. Trebilcock, T. H. Shore
and George Scatcherd.

Mr. W. J. Reid was elected Pres-

ident, J. A. Nelles Secretary, D.
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McKenzie Treasurer and Jas. H.
Brown Superintendent of Grounds
and Buildings. The dates this year

were September 8th to 16th.

A motion was carried at a meet-

ing held March 11th of this year to

increase the prize list in the Live

Stock Department ten per cent.

During the Exhibition of this year

Col. Leys died, and a suitable resolu-

tion was passed by the Board. This

year closed with a cash balance of

$9,897.26 in the Bank.

For the year of 1906 two new
Directors were elected at the Annual

Meeting viz. Dr. G. A. Routledge and
A. W. Smith. Two new ones from

the City Council Mayor Judd and
Aid. Armstrong, and one from East

Middlesex, Mr. R. Oke. Mr. W. J.

Eeid was again elected President.

During this year Mr. J. A. Nelles
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iN^o had 8ct«d m Secretary for five

yeart resigned, and A. M. Hunt wai

^poiBted hit luccessor. It wai alio

during this year that the death oc-

curred of Wr. O. F. Jewell who had

fOk yean acted as auditor. His son,

Mr. F. O. Jewell was appointed to

succeed him. There was a very

large expenditure of money this

year on Grounds and Buildings, to-

ward which the City contributed

|2,000;00. The Exhibition was very

successful. The Gates and Grand
Stand receipts were over $23,00a.00;

booths and privileges brought in

14,786.00 and other receipts accord-

ingly. Over $11,500.00 was paid in

prizes, $3,000 spent in advertising,

$5,600.00 in attractions and the year
closed with a Bank balance of the

sum of $11,667.00.

One change only was made in
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election of Directors for 1907. Lt-

OoL B. McEwen wu elected to suc-

ceed llr. Smith. A Dog Show was

held this year which was a success

in every way. $6,260 was expended

tWs year on the Oronnds and Build-

ings. A system of sewerage was in-

stalled, and large lavatories built.

A large addition was built to the

Horse bams, and the buildings all

painted, added greatly to the gen-

eral appearance of the grounds.

$2,000.00 of the above was paid by
the City and the balance by the As-

sociation. The attendance was large

and receipts good, and after paying

all claims, and meeting the above ex-

penditure the year dosed with a

cash balance of $10,742.00.

Of the Exhibitions of 1908-9-10

very little need be said. Large ex-

penditures of money on grounds and
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buildings have been made each year,

toward which the Oity have contrib-

uted liberally. A new open stand

had been built, a new building for

Oement Exhibits, was erected last

year, and a cold storage system in-

stalled for the Cheese Exhibits. The

track has been re-clayed and the in-

terior of almost all the buildings

changed. Dog and Cat Shows with

liberal prizes have been held each

year. Over $17,000.00 was offered

in prizes in 1910, of which $14,600.00

was paid. The Ontario Government

are now making a grant of about

$1,200.00 each year direct to the As-

sociation instead of through the other

Societies, and the two Societies, viz.

East Middlesex and the London

District Agricultural continue to

pay over aU their available funds

yearly. The Board will close the Ex.
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hibition year of 1910 with a inrpluB

of $10,000.00 after paying during the

past three years out of their own

funds $7,500.00 towards permanent

improvements.

Since the organization of the As-

sociation the City has expended over

$126,000.00, and the Western Fair

Association have paid out of their

own Treasury, on Grounds and Build-

ings account alone, over $80,000.00,

all of which has gone to the mer-

chants and workmen of London for

supplies and labor.. .Thousands of

dollars have been paid for caretakers

and help of all kinds, over $350,000

has been paid in prizes to Exhibitors,

which all goes to show to some ex-

tent the amount of money put in cir-

culation through the medium of this

Association. There are only four of-

ficials who receive salaries viz. Sec-
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'•twy, Tntmxarw, Saparintendsiit

and Auditor hoim of whom give their

n^iole time to the work.

Oreiit prtiw ihonld be given the

Director! who have itojed by thii

Awociation year after year, who,
without any remuneration whatever,

have given freely of their time to ad-
vance ite interest, knowing, ai they
did, that whatever was for the best

intereit of the Aisociation was also

of great advantage to the CHty of
London, and all will admit that
this Association is one of the lost
assets the City has at the present
time. The Directors each timrj an
ISxhibition is arranged for, assume a
liability of about $45,000 and should
the KxhiWtion, from unfavoiible
weather, or any other cause prove a
failure they would be i^wrsonaUy re-
ponsible for these obligations. It
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therefoitf becomei the CMtiMm gen-

erally to help by every effort poidble

to make the Exhibitioni each year

more incceMful. The Board are pre-

pared to extend their efforti itlll far-

ther, to ipend more money in adver-

tiaing the Exhibition, and thereby

advertise London to enlarge the prize

list and thereby induce more Exhib-

itor! to come, if the Oitisens of

London and vicinity and the City

Council give them to feel they are

with them in this regard and thus

build up the Exhibition and by so

ifingf build up a greater London.
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